
McNulty, Paul J 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Margolis, David 
Thursday, October 19. 2006 1.25 PM 
McNulty, Paul J 
RE: Meeting w/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

Well said. 

----- Original Message----- 
From: McNulty, Paul J 
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2006 12:23 PM 
To: Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW); Elston, Michael (ODAG); Moschella, William 
Cc: Margolis, David 
Subject: RE: Meeting w/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

That's fine. David speaks for me in such matters. But please know that while my door is 
always open, I would not have selected Will as my principal associate or Mike as my Chief- 
of-Staff if they were not exemplary in their integrity, discretion and respect for United 
States Attorneys. See you this afternoon. 

----- Original Message----- 
From: Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) 
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2006 6:39 AM 
To: Elston, Michael -(ODAG) ; Moschella, William; McNulty, Paul J 
Subject: Re: Meeting w/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

Last evening I received the response from David Margolis to my request on behalf of WDMI 
for an investigation. I ask that David or Scott Schools be present at this afternoon's 
meeting. I do not know Mr. Elston or Mr. Moschella. Scott Schools and David know the 
situation and me. Thank you. MMC -------------------------- 
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 

----- Original Message----- 
From: McNulty, Paul J <Paul.J.McNulty@usdoj.gov> 
To: Moschella, William <William.Moschella@usdoj.gov>; Elston, Michael (ODAG) 
<Michael.Elston@usdoj.gov>; Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) <MChiara@usa.doj.gov> 
Sent: Tue Oct 17 17:27:17 2006 
Subject: Meeting w/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

When: Thursday, October 19, 2006 2:30 PM-2:50 PM (GMT-35:OO) Eastern Time (US 6 Canada). 
Where: RFK Bldg., Room 4111 

*,*-*,*,*,*,*,*,*,* 

Attendee: USA Chiara, Moschella, Elston 



Elston, Michael (ODAG) 

Subject: Phone Conference with Paul Charlton 

Start: Wed 8/2/2006 5:00 PM 
End: Wed 8/2/2006 5:30 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Meeting Status: Not yet responded 

Required Attendees: McNulty, Paul J; Charlton, Paul (USAAZ); Meyer, Joan E (ODAG); Elston, Michael (ODAG) 

POC: Elston. Subject AZ death penalty case. 



Elston. Michael (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

McNulty, Paul J 
Thursday, October 19, 2006 12:23 PM 
Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW); Elston, Michael (ODAG); Moschella, William 
Margolis, David 
RE: Meeting w/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

That's fine. David speaks for me in such matters. But please know that while my door is 
always open, I would not have selected Will as my principal associate or Mike'as my Chief- 
of-Staff if they were not exemplary in their integrity, discretion and respect for United 
States Attorneys. See you this afternoon. 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) 
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2006 6:39 AM 
To: Elston, Michael (ODAG); Moschella, William; McNulty, Paul J 
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
situation and me. Thank you. MMC 
-------Am---------------__ 

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 

- - - - - Original Message----- 
From: McNulty, Paul J ~Paul.J.McNulty@usdoj.gov> 
TO: Moschella, William cWilliam.Moschella@usdoj.go~~; Elston, Michael (ODAG) 

~ - 

sMichael.Elston@usdoj.gov>; Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) cMChiara@usa.doj.gov> 
Sent: Tue Oct 17 17:27:17 2006 
Subject: Meeting W/USA Margaret M. Chiara 

When: Thursday, October 19, 2006 2:30 PM-2:50 PM (GMT-05:OO) Eastern Time (US & Canada). 
Where: RFK Bldg., Room 4111 

Attendee: USA Chiara, Moschella, Elston 



Elston, Michael (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Goodling, Monica 
Monday, February 12,2007 8:23 PM 
Elston,.Michael (ODAG) 
Chiara 

.. . 

In all fairness, you probably should make her aware of.the fact that.the DAG will brief 
her upcoming resignation on Wednesday and that it is possible that while we will not' 
disclose outside of the Hill --  that the Hill may "out" her this week. 



Elston, Michael (ODAG) 

From: Elston, Michael (ODAG) 
Sent: Monday, February 12,2007 8:24 PM 
To: Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) 
Subject: RE: NAlS Meeting 

Please give me a call at 202-3'07-2090 when you have a'minute; need to discuss a related 
issue with you. 

-----  Original Message----- 
From: Chiara, Margaret M. (USAMIW) [mailto:MM.Chiara@usdoj.govl 
Sent: Monday, February 12, 2007 5:36 PM 
To : .Elston, Michael (ODAG) 
Cc: McNulty, Paul J 
Subject: Re: NAIS Meeting 

This is a good call. Thank you, I am aware of the required procedure to.secure 
subcommittee assignments. The 2 interims were invited to ensure continuity of service to 
their district's Indian Country population Now that NAIS is convening on March 13 + 14, am 
I chairing the meeting and departing on March 16 or shall I work out other arrangements 
with NAIS members after I announce on Feb. 23? Margaret . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sent from my ~lackherry Wireless Handheld 

-----  Original Message----- 
From: Elston, Michael (ODAG) c~ichael.ElstonOusdoj.gov> 
To: Chiara, ~argaret M. (USAMIW) cMChiara~usa.doj.gov> 
CC: McNulty, Pau1.J c~aui.~.McNult~usdoj.gov>; Shappert, Gretchen (USANCW) 
cGShappert@usa.doj.gov> 
Sent: Mon Feb 12 15:43:49 2007 
Subject: NAIS Meeting 

Margaret : 

I have spoken to Gretchen Shappert, and, as you recommended and based on 
the additional information Gretchen provided, I have concluded that it 
%takes sense to keep the meeting date as scheduled in March despite the 
absence of some long-time members of the subcommittee. 

You also mentioned that two new members of the subcdmmittee from Arizona 
and Western Washington would attend. I don't have any problem with the 
interims from Arizona and Western Washington attending, but I wanted to 
make it clear that they are not members of the subcommittee. New U.S. 
Attorneys do not simply succeed their predecessors on AGAC or its 
subcommittees, and normally interims are not made members of AGAC 
subcommittees except in unusual circumstances. There is a process for 
appointment to subcommittees, and neither interim has been appointed to 

. the subcommittee, 

Thanks again for bringing this issue to my.attention. 



Moschella, William ' 
. . .  

From: Collins,  an 
Sent: " Wednesday, July 09,2003 11:38 AM . . 

To: Moschella, William 
Cc: .' Bryant, Dan (OLP) 
Subject: . DOJ Reauth 

You had asked at the meeting a few weeks ago for ideas on DOJ Reauth. 'one that sprang to mind was eliminating the 
district courts' role in selecting interim USAs. The relevant section is 28 USC 546. Section 546(c)(2) states that the AG 
may appoint an interim USA who may serve for only 120 days,' Upon expiration of the 120 days, section 546(d) st'gtes thaf 
the district court appoints the interim until a USA is appointed as a PAS. 
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Author Collins, Dan 

~ e c i ~ i e n t s  Moschella, William; 6ryant, Dan (OLP) 

Subject RE: DOJ Reauth 

Date 7/9/2003 2:05:41 PM 

,'Quite frequently,,especially during the turnover that occurs during a change of Administrations. (Wht 
an AUSA in LA, we had a coukappointed USA for over a year.) Dave Margolis in our office has had 
task over the years of dealing with the judges on this issue. (The Department is generally not silent c 
question, but makes its views'known.) . . 

From: Moschella, William 

Sent: Wednesday, luly 09,2003 1:46 PM 

To: Cqlli'ns, Dan 

C c  Bryant,  an (OLP) 

subject: RE: ~ ~ . ~ e a u t h  

Have the courts ever used this authority? 

--(lrlginal Menage- 

From: Collins, Dan 

Sent: Wednesday, July 09,2003 11:38 AM 



February 2,2004: 

Ms. Carol C. Lam 
. . United States Attorney . . - 

- 8 8 0  FrontSQeef Room 6293 
SanDiego, Califoniia 92101 . . 

. . 

Dear 'MS. Lam: 
. I 

I %te to request information concerning an incident that reportedly occurred on 
- November.20, 2003. According to news reports, Antonio Amparo-Lopez was arrested on 

, suspicion of alien smuggling and held at the Temecula, Califon&, interior checkpoint 
while border patrol.ageits contacted your office for guidance. 

According to recent reports, Mr. ~mparo-Lopei (Alien #A76266395), a known 
' aliensmuggler kith a long criminal record; was released after your office declined to 
prosecute. . .: . 

I respectfully rques't that your office provide me with information about the facts - 
surrounding the alleged incid.ent of November 20, 2003, and, if applicable, the rationale 
behind any decision'made by your office to decline or delay prosecution of Mr. Amparo- 
Lopez or any other action that may have contributed to his release; 

. . 

1.1ook forward to your response. If~you have any questions, please feel fiee to 
coptact me or my Legislative Assistant Josh Brown at (202)-225-3906. Thank you for . 

your attention to this important matter. 

Sincerely, 

Darrell Issa 
Member of Congress 



Moschella, William 

From: CollinsDP@MTO.com 
Sent: .Wednesday, June 16,2Q04 1239 PM 
To: Moschella, William 
Subject: RE: 

Attachments: tmp.htm 

Itts good to hear from you. I saw some of the AG1s testimony on C-Span last 
week, and I thought he did very well. 

. . 

Thqr provision in .qe$tion is 28 USC 546 (d) .   here are .several options for 
.fixing the problem. You could simply provide that I1~ubsectiori (d) of 
section 546 of ~itie 28 is repealed." ,Doing 'that, and nothing more, would 
presumably allow the AG (under 28 USC 546 (a) ) to continue to make, seriatim, 
120-day appointments of interim U.S. Attorneys. (Under 28 US.C 
546(c) (2), lnterim appointments under 28 USC 546(a) canrrot last more than 
120 days.)- There could be a question whethei: the AG could continue to 

' 

appoint the same person to a new 120-day term, i.e., is the'l20-day limit of 
(c)(2) meant to be a total cap on interim service by way of AG appointment. 
I don1 t think that. is the right reading of 546 (c) (2) , but if you wanted to 
eliminate this risk, you could amend 546(c) by striking "A person appointed 
as United states attorney under this section may serve.untilN. and inserting 
"The term of an appointment.under this section shall expire upon". 
Alternatively, you could add.language repealing . . the 120-day limit on AG 
interim appointments altogether; 

Another option would be to amend, rather than repeal, 546(d). Under the 
current system, the AG gets a 120-day appointment, followed by the court's' 
appointment, which then lasts until a US Attorney is confirmed. You .could. 
just give the AG both appointments. The amendment might look like this: 

Section 546 of title 28, United States Code, is amended' -- 
(a) in subsection, (c), by changing "this eubsectionIt each 

place it appears to I1subsection (a) "; and 
(b) in.subsection (dl by - -  , 

(1) .&triking the last sentence; and 
(2) striking "the district court for such districtM 

and inserting the Attorney General l1 . , 
A third option, which I would NOT recommend, would be to allow US'~ttorneys 
to be filled under the Vacancies Act, 5 ~ ~ ~ ' , 3 3 4 5 ,  et seq. This carries over 
too many constraints and.would impose 'an additional logistical burden on the 
White House. 

Good. luck! 

P.S.: I notice that things are still quiet on the Sentencing Commission 
front. Is there any hint that the earlier anticipated hearing will go 
forward? 

----- 'Original Message----- 
prom: ~illiam.~oschella@usdoj.gov [mailto:William.Moschella@usdoj.govl 
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2004 6:16 AM 



To: Dan Collins (E-mail) 
Subject : 

. Dan, I hope this email finds you well. You once indicated.to me (a pet 
peeve of. yours I think) that federal judges have ,the ability to appoint 

, 

acting USA's. What is the'.code section? There is a potential vehicle for 
an amendment to fix that constitutional anomaly. 



Congree's of @.e mnit.eb States , . 

Wla.@lngton,.~&.20515 . 

July 30,2004 

. . 
The Honorable John Ashcroft 
Attomey General . . 

. United S k e s  ~epaitment of Justice. 
950 Pennsylvania- Avenue NW ' 

. , Washington,DC20$30 , .  

Dear Attomey General Ashcroft: 

. . We write to express-our concern with the Department of Justice's current poliv 
. ofnof prosecutidg certain alien smvgglers. At this time, we ask that you adopt a zero- 

. . tolerance policy for alien smuggling. We believe that aU cases of alleged immigrant. 
smuggling referred to the Department of Justice by the Department of Homeland Security 
should be M y  pursued.and, if the case could reasonably result in a conviction or plea 
agreement, prosecuted. .. 

It is our understandiig that on numerous occasions when the Department of 
Homeland Security has apprehended alien smuggl& and have requested aidance h m  

. the U.S. Attorney's office, they have'been told to &lease these crimiis .  It is : . . 

unfortunate and unacceptable that anyhe in the Department 6f Justice would deem aiien 
. smuggling, on any level or by any person, too low of a priority ta warrant prosecution ki 

a timely'fashion. In our view, a lack available resources for prosecution is not a.valid 
reason foi'a decision not to pros&ute and, in fact, would signify a mismanagement of 
your Department's priorities. . . . ' 

.Alien smu'gglers the safety and well-being of border region co-@ties, 
. Border Patrol officers, local authoritiu, and illegal immigrants in jeopardy. Smugglers 

stand at the root of our nation's immigration problem ind any failure to prosecute these 
. . offenders represents. a failure in our nation's current border security strategy. 

a - The House Judiciary Committee is currently kque&ng information on a known 
alien smuggle~~ntonio Ampato-Lopez,'who was last arrested on suspicion of alien 

' smuggling and held at the Temecula, California,' interior checkpoint.. In.this particular 
case, Border Patrol agents contacted the Office of the U.S. Attorney for the Southern 
District of California for guidance on how to proceed with alien Amparo-Lopez (Alien 
#A76266395), who has a long docurknted record that includes multiple deportation 
proceedings and numerous arrests. He released alter your office declined to 
prosecute. 

. ~ i i e n  smugglers, including Ainparo-Lopez, should not be given a second, third, 
or unlimited number of chances before the Department of Justice decides to purse 



The Honorable John Ashcroft 
July 30,2004. 
Page 2 

. . 

charges. Alien smuggling is indefeniible and when continued unchecked will ultimately 
lead to far greater taxpayer expenditUres than the costs of prosecution and incarceration. 

We strongly urge'you to consider our request for a zero tolerance alien smuggling 
policy. If you have any questiops or concerns, do not hesitate to contact us. 

. . 
Sincerely, 



Thepresideut 
The White House . 

Wasbgtoq D.C. 20500 . 

'Dear hlr, President: ' . . 

. Thae is a crisis dong &e Southwest border .that needs immdia*e 
attmtioa We are wsiting ta encwrage the dedication of m m  tawad the 
incteasedpmsemtio of hmnm smugglersknm ~ " ~ o m "  The Justice 
Department has stated that they lack the necessary resources to prosecute a 
amher  of "coyotes," a si-oa that must change: - 

Illegal hmigmtion poses one of the greatest dangers to our dd 
security. Many immi* who enter i i ~ ~ y  $re  gemu us cximinals. 
Srrmgglers, who assist the eotry of such c r i m i i  iato the country, deserve the 
m e  y r a s d o n  as the ~iminats they lxmprt. Additiody, + c ~ y ~  tes" often 
danger  the lives of those they haasport both d- and after tramit rhtough 
harsh traveL conditions k d  lack of food, water or other M c  necessities. Bman 
9~n~ders also hold many individuals captive after their arrival to the United 
s~~ to wct &r-r fees from ~ M v e s  abroab It is uafa&om&Le &at these 
smugglers wba risk the lives of others for profit be allowed to go free. 

The U.S. Attorney's Qffice is ~eqWSiMe for the posecution of 
gmugglas, but they have had Insuffiaiart funds to psew these m W s  to the 
fullest extent in the past. For example, the Bordler PatmI was Ibstmcted to rehse 
known myotei, Antonio Ampam-L~pez, an individusl with21 aliases Md 20 prior 
amests. Border Patrol agents have stated on manemus o d o m  that thcy find 
such OC-aces demomking. Pnqr should they put thcirlivs at risk to 
apprehend "coyotes" when the system has tumed into a catch-and-release fiasco? 

~urther i~usb-atin~ the pmblem, tbe U.S. Attorney's Office in Sm Diego 
stated that it is forced to LLnitprosecution to only the worst Ueoyoten offenders, 
leaving countless bad actors m go hae. Again. fhis means they are free to 
smuggIe more criminals into the United SMes. 

DAGO 
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There m many deminds sot prosmrial W i g  today. Howew, 
e b h h '  the mu1 ti:layeted threat posed by"coych9' is a prioriv for fhe 

. - S d w e s t  region. We ask that yon d&&e additional resow& ad direct U.S. ! 
Attorneys in the So-t regionto make the p i d o n  of human smugglers a 
priority; i 





Moschella, William 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Brett-Tolman@judiciary-rep.senate.gov 
Wednesday, November 09,2005 11:06 . PM . 
Moschella, William . 
RE: Dan Collins special 

I will get the comprehensive fix done. I 

----- Original Message---;- 
horn: William.Moschella@usdoj.gov [mailto:~illiam.~oschella@usdoj.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2005 10:09 PM 
To: Tolman, Brett (Judiciary) 
Subject: Dan Collins special 

. . 
Brett, as I mentioned, Dan Cqllins mentioned the issue of courts 
appointing USA's. The provision in question is 28USC 546(d). There 

" .are several options for fixing the problem. You could simply provide 
, that ItSubsection (d) of section 536 of ~itle 28 is repealed. ". Doing . 

. that, and nothing more, would presumably allow the AG (under 28 USC 
546(a) ) to continue to make, seriatim, . 

120-day appointments' of interim U.S. Attorneys. '(Under.28 USC 
546(c.) (2!, interim appointments under 28 USC 546 (a) cannot last more. 
than 120 days.) There could be a question whether the AG could continue 
to appoint the same person to a new 120'-day term, i.e., is the'l20-day 

. limit of. 
(c) (2) meant to be a total cap on interim service by way of AG . 
appointment. I don't think that is the right reading of546(c) (2), but 
i f  you wanted to eliminate this risk; I would suggest this more 
comprehensive fix : ' . 

Section 546 of title 28, United States Code, is amended by repxacing 
subsections (c) and (d) with the following new subsection: 

(c) A .person'appointed as United States attorney under this . 
secti.on may se.rve until the .qualification of a' United States attorney 
for such district appointed by the President unde,r section 541 of this 
title. . . 



From: Goodling, Monica . 
Sent: Friday, November I I, 2005 424  PM 

. Varis, NatAlie (USSO); Moschella, William; Battle, Michael (USAEO) To: 
Cc: Blake, Dave 
Subject:' Re: Need Help ASAP 

In both the Sheldon and Acosta cases, although the judges refused to grant a courrt 
appointment to the individual we had in the spot via AG appointment, both judges agreed 
not to exercise their court appointment authority at all, which left open the AG1s ability 
to do successive AG appointments. 

There was a case in 2001 when the Dept asked the court t,o install the Presidentbs nominee, 
who was pending confirmation. The judges instead voted to install someone else from the, 
USAO, over the Deptls request. .(The person.they put in, though, was the office's civil 
chief SO had a 1eadership.position in the office and must have had some sort of background 
ck in relation to the job.) And just between us, .this is one of' the USAS who didn't last 
long, soit could be said in retrospect that the judges proved to be wise. . . 

I don't know of any other cases, but doug might. 

. - ------------------------- 
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 

----- Original Message- - - - - 
E'rom: Voris , Natalie (USAEO) c~ataiie .~oris@usdoj.:~ov> 
To: Moschella, William ~William.~oschella@~~OJMD.USDOJ.go~~'; 'Battle, Michael (USAEO) 
<Michael.Battle@u~doj.gov> 
CC: Goodling, Monica cMonica.Goodling@SMOJMD.USDOJ.go~s; Blake, Dave 
<Dave.Blake@SMOJMD.USDOJ.gov>. 
Sent: Fri Nov 11 16:10:03 2005 
Subject: Re: deed Help ASAP 

I' will see what I can find on the last point. 
My cell is 202/353-5221. . . - - - - ----------------------  

----- Original ~essa~e----- . 
From: Moschella, William cWilliam.~oschella@usdoj.gov~ 
.'To : Battle, Michael (USAEO) <MBattle@usa. do j . gov> ; Voris , ~atalie . (USAEO) 
iNVoris9usa. do j . gov> 
CC: Blake, Dave <Dave.BlakeOusdoj.gov>; Goodling, Monica <Monica.Goo'dling@usdoj.gov~ 
Sent: Fri' Nov 11 16:02:44 2005 
Sub j ect : RE : Need Help ASAP 

Tkis inf ormatian is good. It would be helpfui to figure out the last point. 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Voris, Natalie (USZIEO) . 
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2005 4:02 PM 
To: Moschella, William; Battle., Michael (OSAEO) 

. Cc : Blake, Dave; Goodling, Monica 
, Subject: Re: Need Help ASAP 

I just spoke to the eousa staffer responsible for court appointments. According to him, 
there have been two fairly recefit  instances where the chief.judg.e refused to appoint a . 

USA., Sheldon Sperl ing (ED/AR) was appointed by AG three consecutive times b/c the chief 
judge there  refused t o  do a cour t  appt (judge d i d  not l i k e  Sheldon). Shcldon is now 
~ e s i d e n t i a l l y  appointed.  Alex Acosta has been apptled by AG twice due to jud e l s  

1 8~6000002011 



. unwillingness to appoint. Monica - can you pls .confirm this is k e ?  

;One other thing to note, though I donlt know how to confirm .this since.it hasn't happened 
,recently, .there have been situations where the court chose to make a USA court appointment . 

of their very own (no background checks by the Dept, no vetting, no interviews, etc.). 
This pre-dates the current eousa staffer who handles court appointments so, again, ,I don't 

' 

know how .to confirm. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . -  

----- Original Message-- -- - 
. From; Moschella, William e~illiam. ~oschella@usdoj . gov> 
To : Voris , Natalie (USAEO) <NVoris@usa. dq j . gov> ; Battle, Michael (USAEO) . .' 

~MBattleBusa . doj . gov> , 

CC: Goodling, Monica cMon~ca.~oodl~ng@usdoj.go~~; Blake; Dave <Dave.Blake@usdoj.gov> . 
Sent: Fri Nov 11 15:32:03 2005 ' 

Subject :. Need Help ASAP 

& akndment was floated by: one of our friends'during tie ~atriot negotiations that would 
eliminate. a court's ability to appoint acting USA's pursuant to 28 USC 546 (dl. We 
support eliminating the court's role'in the'appointgnent of acting USA and believe .that the 
AG should have 'that'authority alone; Under current law, the AG appoints, but after 120 ' . 

days, the district court for that distr,ict appoints.. 

Does someorie in EOUSA have instances in which, judges have refused to reappoint the acting 
USA that was appointed by the AG' pursuant to 28 USC 546. 



. MoschelIa, William 

From: Baffle, Michael (USAEO) 
Sent: Friday, November 11,2005 4:12 PM 
To: Moschella, William 
Subject: RE: Need Help ASAP . 

Will, I can confirm the Acosta matter iince I spoke .to the Chief Judge. It was fairly 
recent. 

----- Original Message----- 
From : Moschella, Williw 
Sent: Fri Nov 11 16:06:55 2005. 
To: Battl,e, Michael (USAEO) ; Voris, Natalie (USAEO) 
Cc: Blake, Dave; Goodling, Monica 

. Subject: RE: Need Help ASAP ' ' 

This infohation is good. It would be helpful to figure out the last point. 

----- Original Message----- 
'. From: Voris, Natalie (USAEO) 
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2005 4:02 PM 

. To: Moschella, William; Battle, Michael (USAEO) 
Cc :. Blake, Dave ; Goodling, Monica 
Subject : Re : . Need Help ASAP 

.I just spoke to the.eousa staffer responsible for court appointments. According to him, 
' there have been two fairly recent instances where the chief judge refused to appoint a 

.USA. Sheldon Sperling (ED/AR) was'appointed by AG three consecutive .times b/c the chief 
judge there refused to do a court appt (judge did not like Sheldon). Sheldon is now 

+.. Presidentially appointed. Alex Acosta has been appt'ed by AG twice due to judge's 
unwillingness to appoint. Monica -.can you pls confirm this is true? 

One other thing to note, though I don't know how to confirm this since it hasn't happened . 

. recently, there have been situations where the court chase to make a ~ ' S A  court appointment 
of their very own (no background checks by the Dept, no vetting, no interviews, etc.)'. 
This pre-dates the current eousa staffer who handles court appointments so, again, I don't 
h o w  how to confirm. 
--------------------------  

----- Original Message'----- 
From: Moschella, William c~illiarn.Moschella@usdoj.gov~ 
To: voris, Natalie (USAEO) cNVoris@usa. doj . gov>.; Battle, Michael (USAEO) 
cMBattle@usa.doj.govz 
CC: Goodling, Monica ~~on'ica.~oodling@usdoj.gov~; Blake, Dave <Dave.Blake@u~doj.gov? 
Sent: Fri' Nov 11 15:32:03 2005 . . 
Subject: Need Help ASAP 

An amendment was floated by one of our friends during the Patriot negotiations that' would 
eliminate a court's ability to appoint acting USA's pursuant to 28 USC 546 '(d). We 
support eliminating the court's role in the appointment of acting USA and believe that the 
AG should have that authority alone. Under current law, the AG appoints,'but after'l20 
days, the district court for that district appoints. 

D6es someone in EOUSA have instances in which judges have refused to reappoint the.acting 
USA that was appointed by the AG.pursuant to 28 USC 546. 



Moschella, William 

From: Moschella, .William 
Sent: . . Friday, November 1 1,2005 9:08 PM 
To: 'Brett+Tolman@judiciary-rep.senate.govq '. 

Subject: ' Re: Collins Special 

Are you done for the night? If so, please call me at '353 5136. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. sent' from my .Bl'ac&erry Wireless Handheld 

. ----- Original Message- - - - - 
From: .Brett~Tolman@judiciary-rep.senate.gov.~Brett~To~man@~udicia~ 
To: Moschella, ~illiam <William.~oschella@~MOJMD.USDOJ.g~~> 
Sent: Fri Nov 11 20:30:56 2005 
Subject : Re : Collins Special 

,rep. senate. gov> . 

. . 
Very helpful:. Thank you. -------------------------- 
Sent. from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld (w .BlackBerry;net) 

----- Original Message----- 
' 

From: William.Mosch~lla@u~doj .gov <wiiliam. ~oschella@usdoj .gov> 
To: Tolm+n, Brett (Judiciary) <Brett-Tolman@judiciaq-rep.senate.gov> 
Sent: Fri Nov 11 19:29:41 2005 
~ubject::~ollins special 

' 

There have been two fairly recent instincds where .the chief. judge irefused to appoint a USA 
9 -- one in the ED/of AR and one in Miami. In the ED/AR case, the Acting.USA was appointed . 

by,the AG.three consecutive times b/c the chief judge there re'fused to do a court appt 
(judge ,apparently did not like the individual who is now'presidentially appointed1:The AG 
has had to appoint the USA in Miami twice due to the judge's unwillingness to appoint.. 

Judges should not be appointing USA.Is period for separation of powers issue. 
Notwithstanding that, these examples point out the difficulties with the statute when a 

' judge refuses to appoint the USA who was pre'viously appointed by the AG. 

Also, there was a case in 2001 when the Dept asked the court to install the President's 
nominee, who; was pending confirmation. The judges instead voted to install someone else 
from the USAO, over the Deptls request. The President's nom was 1a.ter'confirmed. 

One other thing to note, though I don't know how to confirm this since it hasn't happened 
recently and the folks who handle this don't have records. I am told, however, that there 
have been situations where the court chose to make a USA court appointment of their very 
'own (no background checks by the.Dept, no vetting, no interviews, etc.). Again, this pre- 
dates the.current staffer who handles court appointments so, again, I don't know how to 
confirm. This may go back to the AG Reno's tenure. 



June 6,2006 

. . ~ O U G H :  William Mercer 
Principal Associate Deputy Attorney General 

FROM: Daniel Fridrnan 
Counsel to the Deputy Attorney General 

SUBJECT: Analysis of Immigration Prosecutions in the Southern District of California 

The United States Atto+y3s Office for the Southern District of California has come under criticism 
for ,ostens$ly weak enforcement of federal immigration criminal offenses. Most  recently, 
Representative Darrell Issa released to the Associated Press an.intemal41-page report written last 
Augirst by the Border patrol in San Diego claiming that the lack of federal immigration prosecutions 
.in San Diego -is hurting morale within the Border Patrol. Specifically, the report points to low 
numbers ofprosecutions of alien smugglers and large numbers of &e declinations by SDCA. Carol . 

' ' . Lam, the U.S. Attomey for SDCA, responded publicly that the report is an unauthorized, altered 
versionof an old report. Regardless of the authenticity of the report, media attention is now focused 
on SDCA's handling of immigration cases k t h  disctusions about the office appearingon the Lou 

. Dobbs show and in network news reports. 

The purpose of this white paper is to apalyze the situation in SDCA by uking M n g . a n d  
prosecution data maintained by EOUSA, c&e data maintainedby the U.S. Courts and the U.S. 

, Sentencing Commission, an EARS evaluation of SDCA, and self-reported statements by U.S. 
Attorney's Offices on their prosecution guidelines for i'mbigration offenses. The report will 
compare data from the SDCA to the situation of the U.S. Attorney's .Offices in Arizona and New 

' ' Mexico, two other border districts. 

Backmound on the San Diego Border District 

SDCA is within the San Diego Sector patrolled by the United States Border Patrol. San Diego is 
Califoinia's Second largest city and the seventh largest city in the country. The San Diego Sector 
c h i s t s  of 66 linear miles of international boundary with Mexico. Although the landborder in the 
district comprises only 7 percent of the entire U.S./Mexico border, 60 percent ofthepeoplewhd live 
along the entire 2,000 mile border live in, or on the Mexican sideadjacent to, the Southern District 
of  California. Directly to the south of San Diego lie the ~ i x i c a n  citiesof Tijuapa and Tecate, Baja 
California : with a combined population of inore than 2 million people. 

~AG000002015 



According to car61 Lam, Border Patrol made 140,000 immigration mats in the Sector last year. 
The.chart below shows border patrol stations near the SanDiego border with Mexico, as well as the 
stations in the neighboring border states. 

SDCA Staffing 
As of June 1, 2006, SDCA h k  a total of 125 authorized FTE AUSA positions, with I l l  actually 
filled.   his is an 11.2%vacancy rate, liigher than the national average of 10%. SDCA appears to be 
looking at a potentially higher effective vacancy rate with three AUSAs. on extended medical leave, 
one AUSA awaiting disability retirement, and f ~ u r  AUSAs in .the militaiy reserves who have 
received formal notice they may be called to active duty in the c o m a  year. Without including a 
natural rate of turnover, this would give SDCA a worstlcase vac,agcy rate of 19.8% if the reservists 

. . get called Bnd the AUSAs on medical leave do not return. , " 

. . 

Qf the 11 1 AUSAs currently employed, 5 1 are assigned to the General Crimes Section, primarily 
responsible for border related prosecutions, and two are assigned to the Civil Section, working on 
civil immigration cases. According to an EARS report analyzing SDCA, 95% of the reactive cases 

. handled by the General Crimes AUSAs involve border immigration or drugs, an&AUSAs split their 
'time 50-50 between reactive cases and proactive investigations. 

By way of comparison, further east along the border, Arizona currently has 1 16 AUSAs and New 
Mexico has 59. These two border districts can serve as points of comparison to the SouthemDistrict 
of California on overall effectiveness in immigration prosecutions. 



SDCA also employs about 50 contractors, many of which are supposed to provide support for the 
.bmigrati.on caseload. The EARS reportis critical about the use of contractors at SDCA and 
..concludes that, in m a y  instances, the contractors are needlessly consuming office resources without 
asisting in processing immigration cases. . .  . 

. ~mmieration~nforcement ~ a t a  
. According to data obtained from the U.S; District Courts for the period from September 30,2004 to 
september 30,2005, the Soythem District'of California had 398 prosecutions for illegal reentxy by . 

. an alien and1041 prosecutions for "otheiy immigration offenses. The U.S. Courts data includes all' 
'felony and classA misdemeanor casesi This is the most recent data availablefiom the courts. 

The U.S. Courts website has historical data on prosecution cases commenced broken down by 
. . . '  district and by type of crime from 2000 to 2005. The chart below contains a.line graph of the trends 

in immigration prosecutions for SDCA, Arizona, and ~ e w  ~ e 5 c o .  Since the fiscal year ending in 
March 200 1, Arizona and NewMexico have had an upward trend in their imrhigrationprosecutions. . - 

. ' SDCA peaked in 2003-04 and has since had aprecipitous decline. Comparing SDCA's performance 
. using 1 1 1 AUSAs and ~ e w  ~exico ' s  higher case commencement numbers qing 59 AUSAs, it ., 

. . seems that SDCA should be doing much more. 1n faheis,  there may be differences in each'district . 

not reflected in a simple lipe graph that could account for the disparity, but the data helps to focus 
. attention on the problem. 

Trends in Overall Immigration Pros.ecutions by District 
(Fel'dnies and Class 'A Misdemeanors) 

- e S D C A  

-+ DNM 

Mar. Mar. Mar. Mar. Mar. Sept. 
.ZOO1 2002 2003 2004 2005 2005 

Data Source: United States Courts 



. ' AUSA Productivity 
Another way of comparing SDCA's performance to other border districts is to examine how many 
immigration cases SDCA is handling per AUSA work year.' This is essentially a measure of , 

productivity and efficiency for each district in handling immigration cases. This analysis shows that 
' .SDCA is lagging far behind the other districts. SDCA handled about 130 immigration cases per . . 

AUSA work year, half the average of 271 cases for the other border districts. h.FY 2005, the data 
looks even less favorable for SDCA. In the first quarter of 2005, the number dropped to 56.34 
k i g r a t i o n  cases handled per AUSA work year. 

. , lrnrr~igration Cases Handled Per 
AUSA Work Year (FY 2004) 

SDTX .DNM ' WDTX DAZ SDCA 

SDCA provides three main reasons for the disparity in the EARS,r+rt. ~ i r s t ,  SDCA statesthiltits 
data includes time spent by ~ppellate and supervisory personnel working on immigration cases. If 
they only reported line AUSA time spent on immigration cases, as they believe other districts do, 
SDCA states that their numbers would be higher. Second, SDCA mostly files felony iminigration 
cases and the other districts file misdemeanor cases which take less time and resources. ~h i rd ,  the 
public defender is more aggressive insan Diego, and'as a result, they take more immigration cases to 
trial. SDCA had 42 immigration cases. disposed of by trial in N 2004, while the next highest 
districts had 29,21, and 11. Overall, the data suggests that SDCA could be doing more and should 
be able to change its prosecution guidelines to handle more misdemeanor cases and increase the ' 
numbers of cases their AUSAs are handling.' 

1 The number of work years spent on immigration cases is determined by aggregating the number of hours AUSAs in 
the district reported spending on immigration cases in their USA5 time entries. 

2 The EARS report was also critical of SDCA's use of contractors to help process immigration cases, when other 
border districts do not have the benefit of such a substantial contractor support force. The report concludes,.San 
Diego appears to be handling fewer cases per AUSA, but with more resources, both AUSA and support (contractor 
and civil service), than other districts." 

4 



Prosecution Guidelines 
The prosecution guidelines employed .by SDCA may help explain why their, &migration 
prosecutions have declined in the past two years and are lower that the other border districts. 
SDCA does not prosecute purely economic migrants. SDCA directs its resources ti, bringing felony . 

charges against the most egregious violators, focusing on illegal aliens with substantialcriminal 
histories such as violent/major felons, recidivist felons, repeat immigration violators on supervise'd 
release, and alien smugglers and guides. SDCA does not prosecute foot guides that do not have a 
serious criminal history. 

. . 

SDCA has a fast trick charge bargain program in place for illegal reentry cases and for alien 
. smuggling cases, but the number of fast tfack~prosecutions'they have done has declined. In their 

supplementary materials requesting reauthorization of the fast track program, SDCA admits its 
. prosecution guidelines have resulted in fewer cases being filed: "[iln 2004, we adjusted our 

prosecution guidelines to, among other things, eliminate a large number of criminal 'alien cases 

v ,. 
where the alien was a suspected foot guide without a serious criminal.history. This change in the -. 

prosecution guidelines resulted in a decrease of approximately 360 cases in 2005." 

New Mexico has a lower threshold for accepting immigration cases for prdsecution. New Mexico 
. accepts illegal reentry cases even when the illegal alien has no prior criminal record. New Mexico 

also takes in alien smuggling cases, focusing on cases where there is.evidence of a.profit motive or 
. where the health and safety of the persons transported was jeopardized. 

. . 
: Analvsis of Specific Immigration Offenses Being Prosecuted 

The differences in prosecution guidelines are borne out by the case filing data from each district. 
When the immigration prosecutions are broken down by specific offense, it is apparent why SDCA is 

. now lagging behind the other border districts hi the number of prosecutions. . 

According to the data, SDCA is doing as well as any other district, except for SDTX, in alien 
smuggling prosecutions under 8 U.S.C. 1324. In 2005, SDCA filed 484 alien smuggling cases with 
554 defendants, a number comparable to Arizona, which filed 380 alien smuggling cases with 585 
defendants. New Mexico had far fewer alien smuggling cases in 2005 with 1 1 1 cases filed with 145 
defendants. 

SDCA filed far fewer illegal entry cases under 8 U.S.C. 1325 than Arizona and New Mexico. In 
2005, Arizona filed 3409, New Mexico filed 1 194, and SDCA filed 470 iilegal entry cases. . 

SDCA is also lagging far behind other border districts in the number illegal reentry prosecutions 
under 8 U.S.C. 1326. In 2005, Arizona filed 1491 illegal reentry cases, New Mexico filed 1607 
illegal reentry cases, and SDCA filed 422 illegal reentry cases. SDCA filed almost half as many 
i!legal reentry cases in 2005 than it did in 2004. 

U.S. Sentencing Commission Data 
SDCAYs emphasis on prosecuting more serious felony immigration cases is borne out by data 
maintained by the U.S. Sentencing commission. For FY 2005, the mean and median sentence in an 
immigration case in SDCA was about 24 months. New Mexico's sentencing data reflects lower 



sentences with a mean sentence of about 15 months and a median sentence of 8 months. Arizona's 
mean and.median sentences were sli&tly higher than SDCA at about 26 months. 

Conclusions and Recommendations 
: '. It appears that SDCA is employing prosecution guidelines that are more restrictive than other 

districts in immigration prosecutions. The most immediate fix would be to change the prosecution 
. guidelines so they aie more in line with the guidelines employed,by other border districts. In 

particular, SDCA should place a greater emphasis on pursuing more illegal reentry cases and alien 
smuggling cases and to also begin prosecuting more misdemeanor illegal entry without inspection 
cases: 

. Any additional resources provided to the district to lower the vacancy rate shodd be. done with a 
- clear understanding that they will.supplement current resources focused on criminal aliens. To the 

.. ' extent that Border Patrol is dissatisfied with the'level of immigration prosecutions, Customs and 
. ; .  Border Protection or the Bureau of Immigration and Custorhs Enforcement should provide SDCA 

with Special Assistant United States Attorneys to .focus on immigration prosecutions and improve 
. . the manpower issues. 
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June 15,2006 

~dxiidrablc Alberto G d d e s  
Department of Justice . . . 

,950 Pennsylvania Avenue. NW 
.Washington, DC 20530 

.. . B a r  Attorney *era1 Gonzales: . 
. . 

During our last week y& asked if 1 had any cdnccms 
the U.S. Attorneys in California I want to follow up'on.that point 

and raise the issue of immigration related prosecutioni in Southern 
California 

It has come to my altintion that despite hi& apprehensions d s  by 
Border Patrol agents dong California's border with Mexico, prosecutions by 
the US. Attorney's Office Southern District of California, appear to lag 
behind. A concemvoiced by Border Patrol agents is that.10~ prosecution 

, dtes' have a demoralizing e&t on the men and women.patrolling our 
Nation's borders. . . 

It is my uqderstandii that the U.S. Attorney's Office Southern 
District of California may have some of the most restrictive prosecutorial 
guidelines nationwide for immigration casts, such that rnany Border Pirtrol 
agents end up not referring their cases. While I appreciate the possibility 
that this office could be overyhelmed with inpigration related cases; I also 
want to stress h e  importance of vigorously prosecuting these types of cases 
so that Califorxiia isn't viewed as an easy entry point for alien smugglers 
because there is no fcar of prosecution if caught. I am concerned that lax 

. prosecution can endanger the lives of Border Pam1 agents, particularly if 
highly organized and violent smugglers move their operations to the ma.  

Therefore, I would appreciate responses to the following issues: 

* Please provide me with an update, over a 5 ye& period of time, on the 
numbers of immigration related cases accepted and prosecuted by the 



. U.S. Attorney Southern District of California, particularly convictions 
unde sections 1324 (alieo smuggling), 1325 (i&dper enby by an 
alicn), and 1326 (illegal re-entry after deportation) of the U.S. Code. 

0 What arc your guidelines for the U.S. Attorney's Office Southern 
District of California? How do these guidelines differ born other 
border secton nationwide? 

By way of example, based on numbers provided to my office by the 
. Buree of Customs and Border Protedion and the U.S. Sentencing 

Comchission, in FY05 Border Patrol agents apprehended 182,908 aliens 
. .. . . dong the border between the U.S. and Mexico. Yet in 2005, the U.S. 

'Attbrney's officcin Southem ~alifamia condcted only 387 aliens for alien 
. . ~muggliig a d  262 aliens for alegal re-entry after deportation. When 

looking at the rates of conviction h m  2003 to 2005, the numbers of 
canvictions fall by nearly half. . . 

so 1 am ~0n-d about t h ~  low numbers. and I would like tb'lmow 
what' steps can be taken to ensure that immigration violators vigoro&ly 
prosecuted. .I appreciate your timely a d b  of this issueand.1 took forward 
to working with you to ensure that our immigration laws are fdly 
implemented &d enforced. 
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Moschella, William 

From: Sampson, Kyle . . 

.. Sent: ,. Monday, December 04,2006 6:30 PM 

To : : McNulty, Paul J; ~ a t t l i ,  ~ i c h a e l  (USAEO) 

Cc: ' Goodling, Monica; ~&chella, William; Elston. Michael .(ODAG) 

Subject: FW: US ~ t t y  plan 
. . 

. Importance:. High 

Attachments: USA replacement plan .doc 

PaulMike, we are a go for Thursday (see below). At this point we likely need to inform Johnny Sutton and Bill 
Mercer re the plan (so they are not caught unawares) - Pa'ul, do .you want to handle that, or would you like me 
to?. On Thursday, .I think we should shoot.to get the Senator calls done in the morning, and then have Mike start. 
-calling USAs at noon - let me know if anyone thinks otherwise. Thx. 

From: Sampson, Kyle . 
Sent: Monday, December 04,2006 6:26 PIY 
To: 'Kelley, William K.' 
Cc: 'Miers, Harriet 
Subject: RE: US Atty Plan 

here is the revised plan, per our discussions 

From: Sampson, Kyle 
Sent: Monday, December 04,2006 6:12 PIY 
To: 'Kelley, William K.' 
Cc: Miers, Harriet 
Subject: RE: US Atty Plan- 
Importance: High 

Greek ,We would like to execute this on ~ h u r s d a ~ ,  December 7 (all the U.S. Attorneys are in town for our Project 
Safe Childhood conference until Wednesday; we want to wait until they are back home and dispersed, to reduce 
chatter). So, on Thursday morning, we'll need the calls to be made as follows: 

' AG calls Sen. Kyl 
* HarrietlBill call Sens. Ensign and Domenici (alternatively, the AG could make these calls and, if Senators 
express any concern, offei briefings re why the decision was made - let me know) 
' White House OPA calls California, Michigan, and Washington "leads" 

EOUSA Director Mike Battle then will call the relevant U.S. Attorneys. Okay? 

From: Kellejr, William K. [mailto:William-K.-Kelley@who.eop.gov] 
Sent: Monday, December 04,2006 4:48 PM 
To: Sarnpson; Kyle 
Cc: Miers, Harriet 
Subject: US Atty Plan 

We're a go for the US Atty plan. VVH leg, political, and communications have signed off and acknowled ed that 
~ ~ 0 8 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 3  
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: we have to be committed to folloking through once the pressure mmes. 



PLAN FOR REPLACING CERTAIN 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS 

STEP 1 

Senator calls: On December 7, the following Republican home-s tate .Senators or, 
where there is no Republican home-state senator, the home-state "Bush political lead" 
are contacted: 

AG calls Jon Kyl (re Charlton) 
. . WHCO calls John Ensign (re Bogden) 
, WHCO calls Pete Domenici (re Iglesias) . 

WH OPA calls California political lead (re Lam and ~ y & )  
WH OPA calls Michigan political lead (re Chiara) 
WH OPA calls Washington political lead.(re McKay) 

AGIWHCOM OPA inform the SenatorsA3ush political leads as follows: 

The Administration has deterniked to give someone else the opportunity to serve 
as U.S. Attorney in [relevant district] for the final two years of the 
Administration. . 

k levau t  U.S. Attorney1 has been informed ofthis determination and bows  that 
we intend to have a new Acting or Interim U.S. Attorney in place by January 3 1, 
2007. 
We will look to you, Senator/Bush political .lead, to recommend candidates 'that 
we should.,consider for appointment as the new U.S. Attorney. As always, we ask 
that you recommend at least three candidates for the President's consideration. 
Importantly, we ask that you rnake.recogmendations as soon, as 

STEP 2 

U.S. Attorney calls: On December 7 (very important that Senator calls and U.S. 
Attorney calls happen simultaneouslv~, Mike Battle contacts the following U.S. 
Attorneys: 

Paul Charlton @. Ariz.) 
Carol Lam (S.D. Cal.) 
Kevin Ryan (N.D. Cal.) 
Margaret Chiara (W.D. Mich.) 
Dan Bogden @. Nev.) 
David Iglesias 0.N.M.) 
John McKay (W.D. Wash.) 



~'attle informs the U.S; Attorneys as  follows: . . 

What are your plans with regaid to continued, service as U.S. Attorney? 
. The Administration is grateful for your service as U.S. Attorney, but has. . 

, determined to give someone else the opportunity to serve as U.S. Attorney in your 
district for the haal two years of the Administration. . 

'a We will workwith you to make sure that there is a smooth transition, but intend 
L to have a new Acting or Interim US. Attorney in place by January 31,2007. 

STEP 3 

Prepare to Withstand Political Upheaval: U.S; Attorneys desiring to save the& 
jobs (aided by their allies .in the politicaI arena as well as the Justice Department 
community), likely will'make efforts to preserve themselves in office. We should expect 
these efforts to be strenuous. Direct &d indirect appeals bf the Administration's 
determination to seek these rkignati6ns likely will be directed at: iarious White House 
offices, including the Office of the Counsel to the ~resident'and the Office of Political 
Affairs; Attomey General Gonzales and DOJ Chief of StafTSampson; Deputy Attorney 
General McNulty and ODAG staffers Moschella and ~lston; Acting Associate AG Bill 

. Mercer; EOUSA Director Mike Battle; and AGAC Chair Johnny Sutton: Recipients of 
such "appeals" m'ust respond identic.ally: . 

' What? U.S. Attorneys serve at the pleasure of the President (there is no right, nor 
. . should there be any expectation, that U.S. ~ t t o m e ~ s  would be entitled to serve 

beyond their four-year tern). 
Who decided? The Administration made the determination to seek ,the. 
resignations. (not any specific person at the White House or the Department of 
Justice). 

. . 
Why me? The Administration is gratell for your service, but wants to give 
someone else the chance to serve in your district. 
I need more time! The decision is to have a new Acting or Interim U.S. Attorney 

'. in place by January 3 1,2007 (granting "extensions" will hinder the process of 
getting a new U.$.'Attorney in place and giving that person the opportunity to 
serve for a full two years). 

STEP 4 

Evaluation b d  Selection of "Interim" Candidates: During ~ecernber 2006- 
January 2007, the Department of Justice, in consultation with the Office of the Counsel to 

: the President, evaluates i d  selects candidates'for Attorney General-appointment (or 
candidates who may become Acting U.S. Attorney by operation of law) to serve upon the 
resignation of above-listed U.S. Attorneys. 



STEP 5 

Selection, Nomination, and Appointment of New U.S. Attorneys: Beginning as 
. soon as possible in Nbvember 2006, Office of the Counsel to the President &d 

Department of Justice cany out. (on an expedited basis) the regular U.S. Attorney 
' appointment proces's: . obta'i recommendations from SenatorsfBush poIitical leads k d  

.other sdurces; evaluate candidates; make reconkendations to the president; conduct 
. background investigations; have President make nominations and work to secure 

c o ~ a t i o n s  of U.S. Attorney nomkees. 



I a& with Ken. Would you like me to bring him to your office'. 

Sent from my BlacWerry ~i re less .~andheld  

--Original. Message---- 
From: McNulty, Paul J 
To: Elston, Michael (ODAG) 
CC: Moschella, William; Margolis, David 
sent: Fri Oct 20 16:47:0 1 2006 
Subject: RE: NDCA update 

Let's huddle up on this early next week Thanks. 

--Original Message-- 
' From: Elston, Michael (ODAG) 
Sent: Friday, October 20,2006 3:21 PM 
To: McNulty, Paul J 
Cc: Moschella, William; Margolis, David 
Subject: Fw: NDCA update 

m 

-Original Message----- 
From: Nowaclu, John (USAEO) 

, To: Elston, Michael (ODAG) ' 
Sent: Fri Oct 20 15:18:15 2006 
Subject: NDCA update 

Mike, 

Just an update on the NDCA situation. John has been running into. 
scheduling diiculties right and left with the folks out there, not to 
inention trouble getting a hotel room in the midst of some massive Oracle 
conference. Because of this, he will reschedule from next Monday to the, 
following week and direct the appropriate people in the offlce to make 
themselves available when he's out there. 

- John 



Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sunday, May 21,2006 10:05 AM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Trends in Immigration Prosecutions 

Attachments: trend graph.doc 

- ----  Original Message----- 
Fron: 
To: se rid man, Daniel (ODAG) 
CC: - 
Senc: Sun May 21 10:00:22 2006 
Subject: Trends in Immigration Prosecutions 

trend graph.doc 
(35 KB) 

Bill - 

I've attached a line graph that helps illustrate the 
problem. I took the U.S. Courts data you obtained and 
got historical data from the courts for immigration 
prosecutions from 2000 to 2005. The data includes 
felonies and class A misdenieanors. I graphed the 
trends for SDCA, Arizona, and New Mexico. 

Since 2000-01, Arizona and New Mexico have had an 
upward trend in their immigration prosecutions. SDCA 
peaked in 2003-04 and has since Had a precipitous 
decline. At the risk of comparing apples and oranges, 
when you compare SDCA1s performance using 111 AUSAs 
(as self-reported to E0USA)and New Mexico with 59 
AUSAs but still generating more cases than SDCA, it 
seems that SDCA should be doing much more. 

I am working on the write up/white paper. My 
impressions from looking at the written materials you 
sent and the data is that SDCA1s prosecution 
guidelines are more restrictive than the other 
districts. In particular, looking at the 2005 courts 
data, they do far fewer (between 50% to 75% fewer) 
illegal reentry cases than New Mexico or Arizona. 

Dan 

Do You Yahoo!? 
Tired of spam? Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
http://mail.yahoo.com 



Trends in Overall Immigration Prosecutions by District 

Sept. Mar. 2005 Mar. 2004 Mar. 2003 Mar. 2002 Mar. 2001 
2005 

Source: United States Courts Data 
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Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sunday, May 21,2006 12:41 PM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Fw: Trends in Immigration Prosecutions 

Attachments: trend graph.doc 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
To: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Sent: Sun May 21 10:04:56 2006 
Subject: Trends in Immigration   rose cut ions 

- - - - -  Oriainal Messase----- 
From L 
To:  ridm man, ~aniel (ODAG) 
CC : 
Sent: Sun May 21 10:00:22 2006 
Subject: Trends in Immigration Prosecutions 

Bill - 

trend graph.doc 

I've a 
(35 W) 

tached a line graph that helps illustrate the 
problem. I took the U.S. Courts data you obtained and 
got historical data from the courts for immigration 
prosecutions from 2000 to 2005. The data includes 
felonies and class A misdemeanors. I graphed the 
trends for SDCA, Arizona, and New Mexico. 

Since 2000-01, Arizona and New Mexico have had an 
upward trend in their immigration prosecutions. SDCA 
peaked in 2003-04 and has since had a precipitous 
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
http://rnail.yahoo.Com 



Fridrnan, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sent: Tuesday, May 23,2006 1 1 :32 AM 
To: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Subject: RE: Urgent Report (Border Patrol Report-CNN Coverage) 

Ok. I also met with John Crews today who was able to better explain to me the numbers in 
the reports, so I do need to revise some of the figures in the memo. The most significant 
change involves prosecutions for 1325 Entry without Inspection violations - -  a class B 
misdemeanor which is not captured in LIONS or court data. Arizona apparently did about 
4000 of these cases in 2005, New Mexico about 1000, and SDCA has not reported their 
number. 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2006 11:25 AM 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Subject: Fw: Urgent Report (Border Patrol Report-CNN Coverage) 

Important -- should be added to the memo. I have a handful of edits to the memo which I 
will fax. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 

- - - - - Original Message----- 
From: USAEO-Urgent 
TO: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG); Taylor, Jeffrey (OAG); Sierra, Bryan (OPA); Scolinos, Tasia; 
Sampson, Kyle; Roehrkasse, Brian; Mercer,   ill (oDAG); ~oodling, ~onica; ~lwood, Courtney; 
Elston, Michael (ODAG); Smith, Kimberly A; Battle, Michael (USAEO); Beeman, Judy (USAEO); 
Coughlin, Robert; Fisher, Alice; Friedrich, Matthew; Kelly, John (USAEO); Parent, Steve 
(USAEO); Sabin, Barry; Schools, Scott (USAEO); USAEO-Chron; voris, ~atalie (USAEO) 
Sent: Tue May 23 11:06:47 2006 
Subject: Urgent Report (Border Patrol Report-CNN Coverage) 

URGENT REPORT-06-05-0021 

TO: THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
THE DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL 

FROM: Carol C. Lam 
United States Attorney 
Southern District of California 
(619) 557-5690 (Office) 
(13513) .. 
(619) 

DATE: May 23, 2006 

CL~SIFICATION : Limited Official Use 

CONTACT PERSON: Carol C. Lam 
United States Attorney 
Southern ~istrict of California 
(619) 557-5690 (Of fice) 
(13513) 
(619) 

SYNOPSIS:Yesterday, Congressman Darryl Issa criticized on CNN1s "Lou 
Dobbs TonightM SDCA1s ltrefusaln to prosecute 100% of all alien 
smugglers. The USAO-SDCA has learned that the "Border Patrol Report" on 



which Rep. Issa relies is an unauthorized, altered version of an old 
report. The USAO-SDCA has issued a written statement to CNN with that 
in£ ormat ion. 

DISCUSSI0N:On Thursday, May 18, 2006, the Associated Press ran a news 
story prompted by the release of a 2004 "Border Patrol Report" by 
Congressman Darryl Issa (R-CA). ~ccording to Congressman ISSa, the 
report from the El Cajon substation of the Border Patrol (San Diego 
Sector) concluded that morale was low among Border Patrol agents at the 
El Cajon station due to the high number of declined prosecutions by our 
office. The story received national media attention. 

On Friday, May 19, 2006, the Chief of the U.S. Border Patrol, San Diego 
Sector, informed us that the report released by Congressman Issa was 
actually an altered and unauthorized version of an actual internal 
intelligence report issued by the El Cajon substation. The original 
report was labeled "Prosecution of Smugglers" for Fiscal Year 2003; the 
altered report was labeled  prosecution of Smugglers (1324) Fiscal Year 
2004." The altered 2004 report contained editorial comments and 
conclusions that were never seen by or authorized by Border Patrol 
management. 

On Monday, May 22, 2006, this office was contacted by CNN and informed 
that Congressman Issa would be appearing on "Lou Dobbs Tonight" to 
discuss the "Border Patrol Report." CNN asked our office for a written 
statement to be shared during the interview. After checking with Border 
Patrol, San Diego Sector, we submitted the following written statement: 

"Representative Issa has been misled. The document he calls a "Border 
Patrol ReportM is actually an old internal Border Patrol document, 
relating to a single substation, that has been substantially altered and 
passed off as' an official report. Many of the comments in the document 
to which Representative Issa refers are editorial comments inserted by 
an unidentified individual, and they were not approved by or ever seen 
by Border Patrol management. 

Many important issues are raised by the problem of illegal immigration. 
However, we believe that all dialogue and debate should be based on 
well-informed and accurate data." 

We have also advised Representative Issals office that we believe the 
Border Patrol report to be an unauthorized and altered version of an old 
internal report. 

In light of previous media interest in this issue, there is a 
possibility that the disclosure that the report is not genuine could 
generate substantial media interest. Our statement was read to 
Representative Issa by Lou Dobbs during his interview which aired at 
3:30 PST. 



3. Provide the number of cases, by district and fiscal year, in which the govemment 
entered into a charge bargain as a reward for substantial assistance or as a form of Early 
Disposition Program fiom October 1,2002 through January 11,2006. 

The government does not typically enter into charge bargains as a reward for 
substantial assistance. Instead, substantial assistance is typically rewarded through 
a motion to reduce sentence pursuant to United States Sentencing Guideline 5K1.1. 
Thus, we do not track data that would be responsive to this aspect of the question. 

The table below summarizes the number of cases, by district and fiscal year, 
in which the government entered into a charge bargain under an approved early 
disposition program. The fiscal year runs from October 1 through September 30, so 
the data from fiscal year 2003 covers the period from October 1,2002 to September 
30,2003. Data for fiscal year 2006 will be available after September 30,2006. 

* The numbers for FY 2005 may slightly understate the number of cases because the 
districts extracted the information during the month of September, but not as of 
September 30,2005. 

** The numbers for WAW also include offenders who were prosecuted under a 
downward departure program, rather than a charge bargaining program. 

The number for FLS in FY 2005 includes some offenders who were prosecuted in the last 
two months of FY 2004 and were not counted that year. 

Programs without numbers indicate that the program was not yet authorized/implemented 
or that offenders were not prosecuted under a charge bargaining program that fiscal year. 



Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Tuesday, May 23,2006 7:19 PM 
Otis, Lee L 
Border Patrol Report 

Lee - 

Any luck getting your hands on the border patrol report that was referenced in the AP story about SDCA? 

Daniel S. Fridman, Esq. 
Counsel to the Deputy Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Office # 41 14 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
Tel: (202) 514-5650 
Daniel.Fridman2@usdoj.gov 



Fridrnan, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Wednesday, May 24,2006 3:42 PM 
Dunn, Clara; Crews, John (USAEO) 
FW: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Please let me know if you have answers for Ron's questions or let me know who I should talk to. Thanks. 

Dan 

Fmm: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24,2006 3:24 PM 
To: Fridman, Danlel (ODAG) 
Cc: Dunn, Uara; Crews, John (USAEO) 
Subject: RE: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Dani This looks like we're getting close. JohnlClara - thanks for you timely work on this. Can I ask for one more double- 
check on the numbers. Arizona's strike me as low, especially compared to SDCA? Anybody have any sense of why the 
large discrepancy? Also, any insight on why SDCA dropped by 50% in fy 057 

Finally, even assuming the data is correct, I do want to change the order of the answer a small bit and eliminate the last 
sentence - it's a department answer so I don't know why we should be saying that the data comes from the individual 
districts. 

The government does not typically enter into charge bargains as a reward for substantial assistance. 
Instead, substantial assistance is typically rewarded through a motion to reduce sentence pursuant to 
United States Sentencing Guideline 5Kl.l. Thus, we do not track data that would be reponsive to this 
aspect of the question. 

The table below summarizes the number of cases, by district and fiscal year, in which the government 
entered into a charge bargain under an approved early disposition program.The fiscal year runs from 
October 1 through September 30, so the data from fiscal year 2003 covers the period from October 1, 
2002 to September 30,2003. Data for fiscal year 2006 will be available after September 30,2006. 

From: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2006 2:22 PM 
To: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Cc: Dunn, Clara; Crews, John (USAEO) 
SubjecL: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Ron - 

Here is a draft answer to question #3 of the QFR using the data compiled by Clara, which was self-reported by individual 
districts. 

Dan 

Daniel S. Fridman, Esq. 
Counsel to the Deputy Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Office #4114 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
Tel: (202) 514-5650 
DanieI.FridrnanP@usdoj.gov 



<< File: charge bargain.doc >> 



Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Wednesday, May 24,2006 535 PM 
Dunn, Clara 
FW: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2006 5:31 PM 
To: Dunn, Clara; Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Subject: RE: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Thanks. That answers that; sorry about the e-mails I know various units are having 
trouble today around the Dept. 

Dan: I would get the final answer to Bill Mercer per my last set of edits so he can put 
them in his QFRs. Tell him I've signed off on them. 

Ron 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Dunn, Clara 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2006 5:25 PM 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Cc: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Subject: RE: 'Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Ron, I'm not getting your emails. I hope you are receiving mine . . .  

The data is correct. Most programs in AZ are Downward departure 
programs, whereas most programs in CAS are charge bargaining programs. 

AZ numbers reflect only the charge bargaining programs 2b (6-11 aliens) 
and 3 (baby smuggling). Most offenders in AZ were prosecuted under 
downward departure fast track programs-over 2000 in FY 2005 reentry 
defendants and around 300+ for smugglers of 12 or more aliens. 

About CAS reductions for FY 2005, I'm quoting from the district's 
request: "the reason for this caseload reduction. was caused by the 
December 2004 revision to our prosecution guidelines for.crimina1 alien 
cases. . . .  there is more at the bottom of page 6 of their submission 
footnote 8. Please see attached PDF file. 

~lara N. Dunn 

4-3975 



From: Daniel.~ridman2@usdoj.gov [mailto:Daniel.Fridman2@usdoj.gov] 
Sent: WednesdayI3May 24, 2006 4:42 PM 
To: Dunn, Clara 
Subject: FW: Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

From: Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2006 3:24 PM 
To : Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Cc : Dunn, Clara; Crews, John (USAEO) 
Subject: RE: Charge ~argain QFR Answer 

Dan: This looks like we're getting close. ~ohn/Clara - -  thanks for you 
timely work on this. Can I ask for one more double-check on the 
numbers. Arizona's strike me as low, especially compared to SDCA? 
Anybody have any sense of why the large discrepancy? Also, any insight 
on why SDCA dropped by 50% in fy 05? 

Finally, even assuming the data is correct, I do want to change the 
order of the answer a small bit and eliminate the last sentence - -  it's 
a department answer so I don't know why we should be saying that the 
data comes from the individual districts. 

The government does not typically enter into charge bargains as a reward 
for substantial assistance. Instead, substantial assistance is 
typically rewarded through a motion to reduce sentence pursuant to 
United States Sentencing Guideline 5Kl.l. Thus, we do not track data 
that would be reponsive to this aspect of the question. 

The table below summarizes the number of cases, by district and fiscal 
year, in which the government entered into a charge bargain under an 
approved early disposition program.The fiscal year runs from October 1 
through September 30, so the- data from fiscal year 2003 covers the 
period from October 1, 2002 to September 30, 2003. Data for fiscal year 
2006 will be available'after September 30, 2006. 

From: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2006 2:22 PM 
To : Tenpas, Ronald J (ODAG) 
Cc : Dunn, Clara; Crews, John (USAEO) 
Subject : Charge Bargain QFR Answer 

Ron - 

Here is a draft answer to question #3 of the QFR using the data compiled 
by Clara, which was self-reported by individual districts. 

Dan 

Daniel S. Fridman, Esq. 
Counsel to the ~ e ~ u t ~  Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Office # 4114 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
Tel: (202) 514-5650 
Daniel. Fridman2@usdo j . gov 
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Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Wednesday, May 31,2006 7:16 PM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Re: Draft Analysis of Immigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

Bill - 

That's not the most current draft. The one I gave you last friday for the DAG to take 
with him was a revised version. Although that version had more detail about SDCAs fast 
track program, revised prosecution numbers, and some of the findings of the EARS report, 
I've since had a chance to go through EARS more completely and will revise the report one 
final time. I can email you the most recent version tomorrow. I can have a final revised 
version for you by friday. 

Dan 

- - - - -  original Message----- 
From: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sent: Wed May 31 18:49:43 2006 
Subject: Re: Draft Analysis of ~mmigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

Dan: is this your final draft? 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 

- - - - -  original Message----- 
From: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
To: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Sent: Mon May 22 08:59:44 2006 
Subject: Draft Analysis of Immigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

Bill - 
Here is my first cut at an analysis of SDCA. I still have questions about the data and 
materials provided by EOUSA which I will follow up on today. There is also some 
additional data I'd like to see. 

Let me know if this is what you had in mind. 

Dan 

- - - - -  original Message----- 
Fri 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
c. 
sent: M& May 22 07:12:29 2006 
Subject: dan-fridman@yahoo.com 

Do You Yahoo!? 
Tired of spam? Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
http://mail.yahoo.com 



Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Thursday, June 01,2006 9:30 AM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
RE: Draft Analysis of Immigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

Attachments: SWB4.doc 

SWB4.doc (297 KB) 

Bill - 

Here is the most current version. 

Dan 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 7:19 PM 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Subject: RE: Draft Analysis of ~mmigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

If I can get either the older draft or the updated one first thing tomorrow, that would be 
good. 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From : Fridman, Daniel .(ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 7:16 PM 
To: Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Subject: Re: Draft Analysis of Immigration Prosecutions in SDCA 

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
Subject: Re: Draft Analysis of ~mmigration   rose cut ions in SDCA 

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
subject; Draft Analysis of immigration prosecutions in SDCA 



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

Frc 
To: Fridmzn, ~aniei (ODAG) 
CC: ' 
Sent:   on May 22 07:12:29 2006 
Subject: dan-fridman@yahoo.com 

Do You Yahool? 
Tired of spam? Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
http://mail.yahoo.com 



May 26,2006 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL 

THROUGH: William Mercer 
Principal Associate Deputy Attorney General 

FROM: Daniel Fridman 
Counsel to the Deputy Attorney General 

SUBJECT: Analysis of Irnnligration Prosecutions in the Southern District of California 

The United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of California has come under 
criticism for ostensibly weak enforcement of federal immigration criminal offenses. Most 
recently, Representative Darrell Issa released to the Associated Press an internal 41-page report 
written last August by the Border Patrol in San Diego claiming that the lack of federal 
immigration prosecutions in San Diego is hurting morale within the Border Patrol. Specifically, 
the report points to low numbers of prosecutions of alien smugglers and large numbers of case 
declinations by SDCA. Carol Lam, the U.S. Attorney for SDCA, responded publicly that the 
report is an unauthorized, altered version of an old report. Regardless of the authenticity of the 
report, media attention is now focused on SDCA's handling of immigration cases with 
discussions about the office appearing on the Lou Dobbs show and in CNN general news reports. 

The purpose of this white paper is to analyze the situation in SDCA by using staffing and 
prosecution data maintained by EOUSA, Case data maintained by the U.S. Courts, and self- 
reported statements by U.S. Attorney's Offices on their prosecution guidelines for immigration 
offenses. The report will compare data fiorn the SDCA to the situation ofthe U.S. Attorney's 
Offices in Arizona and New Mexico, two other border districts. 

Background on the San Diego Border District 

SDCA is within the San Diego Sector patrolled by the United States Border Patrol. The Sari 
Diego Sector consists of 66 linear miles of international boundary with Mexico. Directly to the 
South of San Diego lie the Mexican cities of Tijuana and Tecate, Baja California - with a 
combined.population of more than 2 million. According to Carol Lam, Border Patrol made 
140,000 immigration arrests in the Sector last year. The chart below shows border patrol stations 
near the San Diego border with Mexico, as well as the stations in the neighboring border states. 



SDCA Staffing 
As of June 1,2006, SDCA has a total of 125 authorized FTE AUSA positions, with 11 1 actually 
filled. This is an 11.2% vacancy rate, higher than the national average of 10%. SDCA appears to 
be looking at a potentially higher effective vacancy rate with three AUSAs on extended medical 
leave, one AUSA awaiting disability retirement, and four AUSAs in the military reserves who 
have received formal notice they may be called to active duty in the corning year. Without 
including a natural rate of turnover, this would give SDCA a worst-case vacancy rate of 19.8% if 
the reservists get called and the AUSAs on medical leave do not return. 

Of the 11 1 AUSAs currently employed, 51 are assigned to the General Crimes Section, primarily 
responsible for border related prosecutions, and two are assigned to the Civil Section, working on 
civil immigration cases. According to an EARS report analyzing SDCA, 95% of the reactive 
cases handled by the General Crimes AUSAs involve border immigration or drugs, and AUSAs 
split their time 50-50 between reactive cases and proactive investigations. 

By way of comparison, further east along the border, Arizona currently has 1 16 AUSAs and New 
Mexico has 59. These two border districts can serve as points of comparison to the Southern 
District of California on overall effectiveness in immigration prosecutions. 

SDCA also employs about 50 contractors, many of which are supposed to provide support for the 
immigration caseload. The EARS report is critical about the use of contractors at SDCA and 
concludes that, in many instances, the contractors are needlessly consuming office resources 
without assisting in processing immigration cases. 

2 



Immigration Enforcement Data 
According to data obtained fiom the U.S. District Courts for the period fiom September 30,2004 
to September 30,2005, the Southern District of California had 398 protections for illegal reentry 
by an alien and 104 1 prosecutions for "other" immigration offenses. The U.S. Courts data 
includes all felony and class A misdemeanor cases. This is the most recent data available fiom 
the courts. 

The U.S. Courts website has historical data on prosecution cases commenced broken down by 
district and by type of crime fiom 2000 to 2005. The chart below contains a line graph of the 
trends in immigration prosecutions for SDCA, Arizona, and New Mexico. Since the fiscal year 
ending in March 2001, Arizona and New Mexico have had an upward trend in their immigration 
prosecutions. SDCA peaked in 2003-04 and has since had a precipitous decline. Comparing 
SDCA's performance using 11 1 AUSAs and New Mexico's higher case commencement numbers 
using 59 AUSAs, it seems that SDCA should be doing much more. In fairness, there may be 
differences in each district not reflected in a simple line graph that could account for the 
disparity, but the data helps to focus attention on the problem. 

Trends in Overall Immigration Prosecutions by District 
(Felonies and Class A Misdemeanors) 

+- SDCA 

+- DNM 

Mar. Mar. Mar; Mar. Mar. Sept. 
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2005 

Data Source: United States Courts 
Prosecution Guidelines 
The prosecution guidelines employed by SDCA may help explain why their immigration 
prosecutions have declined in the past two years. SDCA does not prosecute purely economic 
migrants. SDCA directs its resources to bringing felony charges against the most egregious 
violators, focusing on illegal aliens with substantial criminal histories such as violent/major 
felons, recidivist felons, repeat immigration violators on supervised release, and alien smugglers 
and guides. 



By contrast, New Mexico has a lower threshold for accepting immigration cases for prosecution. 
New Mexico accepts illegal reentry cases even when the illegal alien has no prior criminal 
record. New Mexico also takes in alien smuggling cases, focusing on cases where there is 
evidence of a profit motive or where the health and safety of the persons transported was 
jeopardized. 

Analvsis of Specific Immigration Offenses Being Prosecuted 
The differences in prosecution guidelines are borne out by the case filing data fiom each district. 
When the immigration prosecutions are broken down by specific offense, it is apparent why 
SDCA is now lagging behind the other border districts in the number of prosecutions. 

According to the data, SDCA is doing as well as any other district, except for SDTX, in alien 
smuggling prosecutions under 8 U.S.C. 1324. In 2005, SDCA filed 484 alien smuggling cases 
with 554 defendants, a number comparable to Arizona, which filed 380 alien smuggling cases 
with 585 defendants. New Mexico had far fewer alien smuggling cases in 2005 with 11 1 cases 
filed with 145 defendants. 

SDCA could be doing more alien smuggling cases with the fast track program it has in place. In 
their supplementary materials requesting reauthorization of the fast track program, SDCA admits 
its prosecution guidelines have resulted in fewer cases being filed: "[iln 2004, we adjusted our 
prosecution guidelines to, among other things, eliminate a large number of criminal alien cases 
where the alien was a suspected foot guide without a serious criminal history. This change in the 
prosecution guidelines resulted in a decrease of approximately 360 cases in 2005." 

SDCA filed far fewer illegal entry cases under 8 U.S.C. 1325 than Arizona and New Mexico. In 
2005, Arizona filed 3409, New Mexico filed 1194, and SDCA filed 470 illegal entry cases. 

SDCA is also lagging far behind other border districts in the number illegal reentry prosecutions 
under 8 U.S.C. 1326. In 2005, Arizona filed 1491 illegal reentry cases, New Mexico filed 1607 
illegal reentry cases, and SDCA filed 422 illegal reentry cases. SDCA filed almost half as many 
illegal reentry cases in 2005 than it did in 2004. 

Conclusions and Recommendations 
It appears that SDCA is employing prosecution guidelines that are more restrictive than other 
districts in immigration prosecutions. The most immediate fix would be to change the 
prosecution guidelines so they are more in line with the guidelines employed by other border 
districts. In particular, SDCA should place a greater emphasis on pursuing illegal reentry cases 
and alien smuggling cases: , 

Any additional resources provided to the district to lower the vacancy rate should be done with a 
clear understanding that they will supplement current resources focused on criminal aliens. To 
the extent that Border Patrol is dissatisfied with the level of immigration prosecutions, Customs 
and Border Protection or the Bureau of Immigration and Customs Enforcement should provide 
SDCA with Special Assistant United States Attorneys to focus on immigration prosecutions and 



improve the manpower issues. 

This analysis was based mostly on U.S Courts data, EOUSA data, as well as information self- 
reported by the districts. I have received an EARS evaluation of SDCA, which contains much 
greater detail about the situation at that office, including the results of inteniews of office 
personnel. I will prepare a supplement to this memorandum incorporating the findings and 
recommendations of the evaluation team as they pertain to immigration enforcement efforts at 
SDCA. 



Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Tuesday, June 06,2006 1256 PM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Final SDCA Analysis 

Attachments: SWB5.doc 

Bill - 
Here is the final memo incorporating the EARS report and U.S. Sentencing Commission data you gave to me yesterday. I 
hope this is helpful. Let me know if there are any other avenues of inquiry you'd like me to pursue. 

Dan 

SWB5.doc (324 KB) 



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

The United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of California has come under criticism 
for ostensibly weak enforcement of federal immigration criminal offenses. Most recently, 
Representative Darrell Issa released to the Associated Press an internal 41 -page report written last 
August by the Border Patrol in San Diego claiming that the lack of federal immigration prosecutions 
in San Diego is hurting morale within the Border Patrol. Specifically, the report points to low 
numbers of prosecutions of alien smugglers and large numbers of case declinations by SDCA. Carol 
Lam, the U.S. Attorney for SDCA, responded publicly that the report is an unauthorized, altered 
version of an old report. Regardless of the authenticity of the report, media attention is now focused 
on SDCA's handling of immigration cases with discussions about the office appearing on the Lou 
Dobbs show and in network news reports. 

The purpose of this white paper is to analyze the situation in SDCA by using. staffing and 
prosecution data maintained by EOUSA, case data maintained by the U.S. Courts and the U.S. 
Sentencing Commission, an EARS evaluation of SDCA, and self-reported statements by U.S. 
Attorney's Offices on their prosecution guidelines for immigration offenses. The report will 
compare data from the SDCA to the situation of the U.S. Attorney's Ofices in Arizona and New 
Mexico, two other border districts. 

Backmound on the San Dieqo Border District 

SDCA is within the San Diego Sector patrolled by the United States Border Patrol. San Diego is 
California's second largest city and the seventh largest city in the country. The San Diego Sector 
consists of 66 linear miles of international boundaq with Mexico. Although the land border in the 
district comprises only 7 percent of the entire U.S./Mexico border, 60 percent of the people who live 
along the entire 2,000 mile border live in, or on the Mexican side adjacent to, the Southern District 
of California. Directly to the south of San Diego lie the Mexican cities of Tijuana and Tecate, Baja 
California - with a combined population of more than 2 million people. 



According to Carol Lam, Border Patrol made 140,000 immigration arrests in the Sector last year. 
The chart below shows border patrol stations near the San Diego border with Mexico, as well as the 
stations in the neighboring border states. 

SDCA Staffing 
As of June 1, 2006, SDCA has a total of 125 authorized FTE AUSA positions, with 11 1 actually 
filled. This is an 1 1.2% vacancy rate, higher than the national average of 10%. SDCA appears to be 
looking at a potentially higher effective vacancy rate with three AUSAS on extended medical leave, 
one AUSA awaiting disability retirement, and four AUSAs in the military reserves who have 
received formal notice they may be called to active duty in the corning year. Without including a 
natural rate of turnover, this would give SDCA a worst-case vacancyrate of 19.8% if the reservists 
get called and the AUSAs on medical leave do not return. 

Of the 11 1 AUSAs currently employed, 5 1 are assigned to the General Crimes Section, primarily 
responsible for border related prosecutions, and two are assigned to the Civil Section, working on 
civil immigration cases. According to an EARS report analyzing SDCA, 95% of the reactive cases 
handled by the General Crimes AUSAs involve border immigration or drugs, and AUSAs split their 
time 50-50 between reactive cases and proactive investigations. 

By way of comparison, further east along the border, Arizona currently has 1 16 AUSAs and New 
Mexico has 59. These two border districts can serve as points of comparison to the SouthernDistrict 
of California on overall effectiveness in immigration prosecutions. 



SDCA also employs about 50 contractors, many of which are supposed to provide support for the 
immigration caseload, The EARS report is critical about the use of contractors at SDCA and 
concludes that, in many instances, the contractors are needlessly consuming office resources without . 
assisting in processing immigration cases. 

Immigration Enforcement Data 
According to data obtained fiom the U.S. District Courts for the period fiom September 30,2004 to 
September 30,2005, the Southern District of California had 398 prosecutions for illegal reentry by 
an alien and 1041 prosecutions for "other" immigration offenses. The U.S. Courts data includes all 
felony and class A misdemeanor cases. This is the most recent data available fiom the courts. 

The U.S. Courts website has historical data on prosecution cases commenced broken down by 
district and by type of crime fiom 2000 to 2005. The chart below contains a line graph of the trends 
in immigration prosecutions for SDCA, Arizona, and New Mexico. Since the fiscal year ending in 
March 2001, Arizona and New Mexico have had an upward trend in their immigration prosecutions. 
SDCA peaked in 2003-04 and has since had a precipitous decline. Comparing SDCA's performance 
using 11 1 AUSAs and New Mexico's higher case commencement numbers using 59 AUSAs, it 
seems that SDCA should be doing much more. In fairness, there may be differences in each district' 
not reflected in a simple line graph that could account for the disparity, but the data helps to focus 
attention on the problem. 

Trends in Overall Immigration Prosecutions by District 
(Felonies and Class A Misdemeanors) 
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AUSA Productivity 
Another way of comparing SDCAYs performance to other border districts is to examine how many 
immigration cases SDCA is handling per AUSA work year.' This is essentially a measure of 
productivity and efficiency for each district in handling immigration cases. This analysis shows that 
SDCA is lagging far behind the other districts. SDCA handled about 130 immigration cases per 
AUSA work year, half the average of 271 cases for the other border districts. In FY 2005, the data 
looks even less favorable for SDCA. In the fist quarter of 2005, the number dropped to 56.34 
immigration cases handled per AUSA work year. 

Immigration Cases Handled Per 
AUSA Work.Year (FY 2004) 

SDTX DNM WDTX DAZ SDCA 

SDCA provides three main reasons for the disparity in the EARS report. First, SDCA states that its 
data includes time spent by appellate and supervisory personnel working on immigration cases. If 
they only reported line AUSA time spent on immigration cases, as they believe other districts do, 
SDCA states that their numbers would be higher. Second, SDCA mostly files felony immigration 
cases and the other districts file misdemeanor cases which take less time and resources. Third, the 
public defender is more aggressive in San Diego, and as aresult, they take more immigration cases to 
trial. SDCA had 42 immigration cases disposed of by trial in FY 2004, while the next highest 
districts had 29,21, and 11. Overall, the data suggests that SDCA could be doing more and should 
be able to change its prosecution guidelines to handle more misdemeanor cases and increase the 
numbers of cases their AUSAs are handling.2 

' The number of work years spent on immigration cases is determined by aggregating the number of hours AUSAs in 
the district reported spending on immigration cases in their USA -5 time entries. 

2 The EARS report was also critical of SDCA's use of contractors to help process immigation cases, when other 
border districts do not have the benefit of such a substantial contractor support force. The report concludes, "San 
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
SDCA does not prosecute purely economic migrants. SDCA directs its resources to bringing felony 
charges against the most egregious violators, focusing on illegal aliens with substantial criminal 
histories such as violentfmajor felons, recidivist felons, repeat immigration violators on supervised 
release, and alien smugglers and guides. SDCA does not prosecute foot guides that do not have a 
serious criminal history. 

SDCA has a fast track charge bargain program in place for illegal reentry cases and for alien 
smuggling cases, but the number of fast track prosecutions they have done has declined. In their 
supplementary materials requesting reauthorization of the fast track program, SDCA admits its 
prosecution guidelines have resulted in fewer cases being filed: "[iln 2004, we adjusted our 
prosecution guidelines to, among other things, eliminate a large number of criminal alien cases 
where the alien was a suspected foot guide without a serious criminal history. This change in the 
prosecution guidelines resulted in a decrease of approximately 360 cases in 2005." 

New Mexico has a lower threshold for accepting immigration cases for prosecution. New Mexico 
accepts illegal reentry cases even when the illegal alien has no prior criminal record. New Mexico 
also takes in alien smuggling cases, focusing on cases where there is evidence of a profit motive or 
where the health and safety of the persons transported was jeopardized. 

Analysis of Specific Immigration Offenses Being Prosecuted 
The differences in prosecution guidelines are borne out by the case filing data fiom each district. 
When the immigration prosecutions are broken down by specific offense, it is apparent why SDCA is 
now lagging behind the other border districts in the number of prosecutions. 

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
2005, Arizona filed 3409, New Mexico filed 11 94, and SDCA filed 470 illegal entry cases. 

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
SDCAYs emphasis an prosecuting more serious felony immigration cases is borne out by data 
maintained by the U.S. Sentencing commission. For FY 2005, the mean and median sentence in an 
immigration case in SDCA was about 24 months. New Mexico's sentencing data reflects lower 



sentences with a m e h  sentence of about 15 months and a median sentence of 8 months. Arizona's 
mean and median sentences were slightly higher than SDCA at about 26 months. 

Conclusions and Recommendations 
It appears that SDCA is employing prosecution guidelines that are more restrictive than other 
districts in immigration prosecutions. The most immediate fix would be to change the prosecution 
guidelines so they are more in line with the guidelines employed by other border districts. In 
particular, SDCA should place a greater emphasis on pursuing more illegal reentry cases and alien 
smuggling cases and to also begin prosecuting more misdemeanor illegal entry without inspection 
cases. 

Any additional resources provided to the district to lower the vacancy rate should be done with a 
clear understanding that they will supplement current resources focused on criminal aliens. To the 
extent that Border Patrol is dissatisfied with the level of immigration prosecutions, Customs and 
Border Protection or the Bureau of Immigration and Customs Enforcement should provide SDCA 
with Special Assistant United States Attorneys to focus on immigration prosecutions and improve 
the manpower issues. 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Tuesday, June 27,2006 3:00 PM 
Mercer, Bill (ODAG) 
Re: Did you ever see the EARS report on SDCA? 

Yes, you sent it to me when I was preparing my memo on SDCA. I incorporated some of the 
findings into the last version of the memo. 

Dan 
- - - - - -  Original Message------ 
From: Bill (ODAG) Mercer 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Sent: Jun 25, 2006 6:42 PM 
Subject: Did you ever see the EARS report on SDCA? 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld 



Fridman. Daniel IODAG) 

From: Crews, John (USAEO) 
Sent: Wednesday, June 21,2006 5 2 8  PM 
To: Fridman, Daniel (ODAG) 
Subject: Fw: Request from ODAG staff 

Attachments: imm1326-alpha.pdf; 18 usc 91.1 -alpha.pdf; 18 usc 1001 -alpha.pdf; 18 usc 1542-alpha-pdf; 18 
usc 1543-alpha.pdf; 18 usc 1544-alpha.pdf; 18 usc 1546-alpha.pdf; 42 usc 408-alpha.pdf; 
id-1 028-alpha.pdf; imml324-alpha.pdf; imm1325-alpha.pdf 

rnrnl326-alpha.pdf 18 usc 18 USC 18 usc 18 usc 18 usc 18 usc 
(35 KB) 11-alpha.pdf (35 KDO1-alpha.pdf (35 K642-alpha.pdf (35 K643-alpha-pdf (35 K644-alpha-pdf (34 K646-alpha.pdf (36 Kl 

42 USC Id-1028-alpha.pdf rnrnl324-alpha.pdf rnml325-alpha.pdf 
08-alpha.pdf (31 KE (36 KB) (35 KB) (34 KB) 

Fyi 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Device 

- - - - -  Original Message----- 
From: Slusher, Michelle (USAEO) c~Slusher@usa.doj.gov> 
To : Crews, John (USAEO) c~~rews~usa . doj . gov> 
CC : Tone, Barbara (USAEO) <BTone@usa . do j . gov> 
Sent: Wed Jun 21 17:16:39 2006 
subject- RE: Request from ODAG staff 

John, 

Attached are the reports you asked for on behalf of the Deputy Attorney Generalh??~ office 
for immigration-related statutes. Please let the Deputy Attorney Generalh??~ office know 
that the individual reports were produced based upon each of the specified statutes. 
Therefore, the number of cases or defendants contained on the individual reports cannot be 
added together since double counting will occur if more than one of the requested statutes 
was charged against the same defendant. If you have any questions or require anything 
further, please let us know. 

Regards, 
Miche ccimml326-alpha.pdf>> 1 cc18 usc 911-alpha.pdf>> 1 cc18 usc 1001-alpha.pdf>> e cc18 
usc 1542-alpha.pdf>> 
cc18 usc 1543-alpha.pdf>> 
cc18 usc 1544-alpha.pdf >> 
cc18 usc 1546-alpha.pdf>> 
cc42 usc 408-alpha.pdf>> ccid-1028lalpha.pdf>> c ccimml324-alpha.pdf>> c ccimm1325 

- alpha.pdf>> imml326-alpha.pdf>> cc18 usc 911-alpha.pdf>> cc18 usc 1001-alpha.pdf>> 
cc18 usc 1542-alpha.pdf>> cc18 usc 1543-alpha.pdf>> cc18 usc 1544-alpha.pdf>> cc18 usc 
1546-alpha.pdf>> cc42 usc 408-alpha.pdf>> <<id-1028-alpha.pdf>> ccimml324-alpha.pdf>> 
ccimml325-alpha.pdf>> 

From : Crews, John (USAEO) 
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2006 2:06 PM 
To : Slusher, Michelle (USAEO) 
Subject: Request from ODAG staff 

Michelle : 

This is a request f r o m  the ODAG staff. They have requested that this information be 
provided at t he  earl iest  possible date. They have impressed upon me that the results 



should be considered to be of the highest possible priority 

Please obtain the data from the following years; [I] FY 06 year to date; [2] FY 05; 
131 FY 04; [4] FY 03; [5] FY 02; and 161 FY 01. This data request covers all 94 
districts. 

Please obtain information relating to number of cases and number of defendants 
actually prosecuted for: 

[A] 8 U.S.C. 1324 

[Bl 8 U.S.C. 1325 (misdemeanor and felony) 

[C] 8 USC 1326 

[Dl 18 USC 1542 

[El 18USC 1543 

[F] 18 USC 1544 

[GI 18 USC 1546 

[HI 18 USC 1028 

[I] 42 USC 408 

[J] 18 USC 911 

[Kl 18 USC 1001 (if immigration coded) 

The request is prioritized in the order (A to K) listed above. 

After consultation with case management please provide me with an estimated time of 
completion. 

Thank you in advance. 

John 

John Crews 
Attorney Advisor 
Counsel to the Director's Office (CTD) 
Executive Office for United States Attorney's 
Room 2254 Main Justice,Building 
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 20530 
202.305.1214 Direct Dial 
202.353.3349 Facsimile 

' '202.256.9303 Cellular 
~John.~rews@usdoj.~ov E-Mail 



United States Attorneys-Criminal Caseioad Statistics' 

Immigration - 8 U.S.C. 1326" 
Cases Filed - Fiscal Years 2001-2006- 

Listing Sorted: Alphabetically by District 

District 

Alabama, Middle 
Alabama, Northern 
Alabama, southern 
Alaska 
Arizona . 
Arkansas, Eastern 
Arkansas, Western 
California, Central 
California, Eastem 
California, Northern 
California, Southern 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
Distrid of Columbia 
Florida, Middle 
Florida, Northern 
Florida, Southern 
Georgia, Middle 
Georgia, Northem 
Georgia, Southern 
Guam 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois, Central 
Illinois, Northern 
Illinois, Southern 
Indiana, Northern 
Indiana, Southem 
lowa, Northern 
lowa, Southern 
Kansas 

Kentucky, Eastern 
Kentucky, Western 
Louisiana, Eastern 
Louisiana, Middle 
Louisiana, Western 
Maine 
Maryland 

Massachusetts 
Michigan, Eastern 
Michigan. Western 

Minnesota 
Mississippi, Northern 
Mississippi, Southern 

Missouri, Eastern 

Missouri, Western 
Montana 

Nebraska 

Nevada 



District 

New Hampshire 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
New York, Eastern 
New York, Northern 
New York, Southern 
New York, Western 
North Carolina, Eastern 
North Carolina, Middle 
North Carolina, Western 
North Dakota 
Northern Manana Islands 
Ohio, Northern 
Ohio, Southern 
Oklahoma, Eastern 
Oklahoma, Northern 
Oklahoma, Western 
Oregon 
Pennsylvania, Eastern 
Pennsylvania, Middle 
Pennsylvania, Western 
Puerto Rico 
Rhode Island 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee, Eastern 
Tennessee, Middle 
Tennessee, Western 
Texas, Eastern 
Texas, Northern 
Texas, Southern 
Texas, Western 
Utah 
Vermont 
Virgin Islands 
Virginia, Eastern 
Virginia, Westem 
Washington, Eastern 
Washington, Western 
West Virginia, Northern 
West Virginia, Southem 
Wisconsin, Eastern 
Wisconsin, Western 
Wyoming 
All Districts 

Caseload data extraded from b e  United Slates Altomeyo' Case Management System. 

q a t n  indud- anr a d  a~ aimlnar ca~e~de(@ridant+ h e r n  a IJ,S.C. 1328 ( R ~ ~ I Q  or oeponer~  ens) was wugnt as my charge agaiwt a hfendanl. 

- T Y  1006 numberr ere achtal data through the end of March 2OM. 2WundB 



United States Attomeyocriminal Caseload Statistics' 
Immigration.- 8 U.S.C. 1326" 

Defendants in Cases Filed - Fiscal Years 2001-2006" 

Llsting Sorted: Alphabetically by District 

District 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006- 

Alabama, Middle 
Alabama, Northern 
Alabama, Southern 
Alaska 
Arizona 
Arkansas, Eastern 
Arkansas, Western 
California, Central 
California, Eastern 
California, Northern 
California, Southern 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
District of Columbia 
Florida, Middle 
Florida, Northern' 
Florida. Southern 
Georgia, Mlddle 
Georgia, Northern 
Georgia, Southern 
Guam 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois, Central 
Illinois, Northern 
Illinois, Southern 
Indiana, Northern 
Indiana, Southern 
lowa, Northern 
lowa, Southern 
Kansas 
Kentucky, Eastern 
Kentucky, Western 
Louisiana, Eastern 
Louisiana, Middle 
Louisiana, Western 
Maine 
Maryland 
Massachusetts 
Michigan, Eastern 
Michigan, Western 
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
North ~akota 
Northern Mariana Islands 
Ohio, Northem 
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
Texas, Eastem 
Texas, Northern 
'Texas, Southern 
Texas, Western 
Utah 
Vermont 
Virgin Islands 
Virginia, Eastern 
Virginia, Western 
Washington, Eastern 
Washington, Western 
West Virginia, Northern 
West Virginia, Southern 
W~sconsin, Eastern 
Wisconsin, Western 

Wyoming 
All Districts 

Xasebad data extraded from the United States AUarneys' Case Management System. 

"Data includes any and aH aiminal casesldefendants where 8 U.S.C. 1326 (Reentry of Deported Aliens) was bmught as any charge against a defendanL 

"M 2006 numbers am actual data through Ihe end of March 2006. 2hlun06 


